
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
MEETING 

 
 

June 25, 2019 
 
 

Executive Conference Room 



 

 
Chief Executive Officer 

505.863-7501 l 705 Gurley Avenue l Gallup, New Mexico 87301 l malm@unm.edu 

gallup.unm.edu 

UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board Meeting 
Room GH1216 --- 705 Gurley Avenue 

June 25, 2019 --- 1:00 PM 
Gallup, NM 87301 

 

Agenda 
 

I Call to Order, Confirmation of a Quorum, Adoption of the Agenda – Local Advisory Board Chair Ralph Richards 
 
II Introduction and Board Recognition of Dr. Jerry Dominguez – Ralph Richards 

 
III Vote to Approve Minutes: May 21, 2019 Regular Meeting – Ralph Richards 
 
IV Public Comment Related to Items on the Agenda (limit 3 min. per speaker) 

All speakers must sign in with the Recording Secretary 
 

V Comments from Local Advisory Board Members related to items on the Agenda. 
 

VI CEO Report - James Malm 
a. UNM Gallup Campus Summary of Current and Plant Funds Report: 2019 Period 11 
b. UNM Foundation Endowment Activity Report for nine months ended 03.31.19-Gallup Branch 
c. UNMF Performance by Investment Allocation Chart 

 
VII New Business – Ralph Richards 

a. Review annually per (300.1) UNM Gallup Campus Local Advisory Board Bylaws – Through the Fourth 
Amendment Adopted & Included April 4, 2017 

b. Review biennially per Bylaws (300.2) the Operation Agreement between the Board of Regents of the 
University of New Mexico and the Local Board of the Gallup Campus of the University of New Mexico – 
FY2018-20 

c. Establish annually per Bylaws (310.2) Regular Meetings – Dates and Times FY2019-20 
d. Vote on the Open Meetings Act Resolution in accordance with NMSA 1976, Section 10-15-1 through 10-

15-4 and NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1.C 
e. Vote on Local Advisory Board Code of Ethics – FY2019-20 
f. Correspondence to McKinley County Bureau of Elections Regarding UNMG Local Advisory Board 

Positions Open for November 5, 2019 Election – Christy Butler 
 

VIII Old Business – Ralph Richards 
a. UNMG Environmental Scan (Distributed at last meeting.) 
b. Vote and discuss a letter of support from all the Branch Campus’ Board Chairs to Board of Regents 

President Brown and President Stokes 
 

IX Public Comments Not Related to Items on the Agenda (limit 3 min. per speaker) 
All speakers must sign in with the Recording Secretary 

 
X Adjourn 

 
XI Meet at CEO Residence, 1900 Mariyanna Avenue for A Local Advisory Board Garden Party Reception with 

Heavy Hors d’oeuvres Celebrating Dr. Jerry Dominguez’s Contributions to UNM Gallup 
  



 

 
Chief Executive Officer 

505.863-7501 l 705 Gurley Avenue l Gallup, New Mexico 87301 l malm@unm.edu 

gallup.unm.edu 

 
Dates to Remember 
 
July 4 & 5   Independence Day Holiday – UNMG Closed 
August 12   UNMG Campus Convocation 
August 19   2019 fall semester begins 
August 27   File intent for candidacy for UNMG Local Advisory Board at McKinley County 
       Bureau of Elections-County Clerk office from 9:00 am to 5:00 pm. 
September 2   Labor Day -- UNMG Closed  
October 10-11   UNMG Fall Break 
December 14   UNMG Fall Commencement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to 
attend or participate in the meeting, please contact the Chief Executive Office (505-863-7501) as soon as possible.  Public documents, including the 
agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats.  Please contact the Chief Executive Office if a summary or other type of accessible 
format is needed. 
 
Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Agendas\2019\20190625 Agenda.Docx 



   

Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Minutes\2019 Minutes\20190521 Board Minutes DRAFT.docx Page 1 

 
UNM GALLUP LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES 

 

Tuesday, May 21, 2019 1:00 PM 
Executive Conference Room 1216 Gallup, NM 87301 
 

UNM GALLUP LOCAL BOARD 
Teri Garcia .................................................................................................................................................... A 
Olin Kieyoomia .............................................................................................................................................. P 
Gerald O’Hara ............................................................................................................................................... P 
Ralph Richards ............................................................................................................................................. P 
Priscilla Smith ............................................................................................................................................... P 
 
UNM-GALLUP STAFF AND GUESTS: 
James Malm, CEO 
Dan Primozic, Dean of Instruction 
Jayme McMahon, Director Student Affairs 
Robert Griego, Director Business Operation 

Jerry Dominguez, UNM Branch Campus Liaison 
Rob Hunter, MCHS CEO 
Christy Butler, Executive Assistant 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM I - Call to Order, Confirmation of Quorum, Adoption of Agenda 
Chair Ralph Richards called the May 21, 2019 regular meeting of the UNM-Gallup Local Advisory Board to 
order at 1:03 PM with roll call.  A quorum was present. 
 
Motion was made by Gerald O’Hara to approve the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board Agenda as presented.  
Motion was seconded by Priscilla Smith and approved by unanimous roll call vote at 1:03 PM. 
 
AGENDA ITEM II – Approval of Minutes 
Motion made by Gerald O’Hara to approve the April 16, 2018 Board Work Session meeting minutes as 
presented, seconded by Priscilla Smith.  Motion approved by unanimous roll call vote at 1:04 PM. 
 
Motion made by Gerald O’Hara to approve the April 16, 2018 Board Regular meeting minutes as presented, 
seconded by Priscilla Smith.  Motion approved by unanimous roll call vote at 1:04 PM. 
 
AGENDA ITEM III – Public Comment Related to Items on the Agenda (limit 3 min per speaker) 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM IV – Comment from Local Board Members 
Ralph Richards thanked the Board members who attended graduation in the wet weather we had. 
 
AGENDA ITEM V – Chief Executive Officer’s Report – James Malm 

a. UNM Gallup Campus Summary of Current and Plant Funds Report 2019 Period 10 – Robert Griego 
gave the report ending April 30.  We are at 83% of the year, revenues are at 81% and expenses are 
at 75% for the summary report.  We are on track and doing well.  He is confident we will end the year 
in the black. 

b. UNMG Environmental Scan was given to the Board.  This will be on the next Board agenda for 
discussion. 

c. A report was given on the analysis of 75% of our graduates.  The top 5 degrees and certificates are 
liberal arts at 23%, nursing & allied health at 20%, construction & welding at 12%, education at 11% 
and business at 9%.  The subjects are nursing & allied health, math, English, biology and chemistry 
which constitutes 51% of the classes offered at UNMG. 

d. Enrollment forecasts for summer and fall - summer is up 12% fall is up 24% as of today’s date last 
from year. 

 
Olin Kieyoomia arrived at 1:23 PM. 
 
AGENDA ITEM VI – New Business – Ralph Richards 

a. UNM Gallup Foundation – New Endowment Development - We need marketing recommendations 
to help us raise funds for scholarships. 

b. Student Housing – Chris Dyer Era Housing Survey Results dated March 24, 2017 - there was no 
discussion. 

c. Jerry Dominguez gave updates on IT, union, main campus student fees and tuition raises, and search 
information on many of the vacancies. 

 



   

Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Minutes\2019 Minutes\20190521 Board Minutes DRAFT.docx Page 2 

AGENDA ITEM VII – Old Business – Ralph Richards 
a. Vote and discuss a letter of support from all the Branch Campus’ Board Presidents to Board of 

Regents President Brown, President Stokes and Interim Provost Wood.  Ralph Richards will have a 
finalized letter at the next meeting for discussion and voting. 

 
AGENDA ITEM VIII – Public Comments Not Related to Items on the Agenda (limit 3 min. per speaker) 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM IX – Adjourn 
Priscilla Smith made motion to adjourn, seconded by Olin Kieyoomia and passed by unanimous roll call vote 
at 2:46 PM. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Ralph Richards, Chair       Priscilla Smith, Secretary 
 
Christy Butler, Executive Assistant 
Board Recording Secretary 



Exhibit 1 - UNM GALLUP Campus 
Summary of Current and Plant Funds

Original Revised 

Budget 2019 Budget 2019 Actuals 2019

PERIOD 11 PERIOD 11 PERIOD 11

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
Revenues Instruction and General 14,772,351 742,610 14,997,811 742,610 13,296,265.84 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 79,120 0 79,120 2,800 74,387.00 .00
Research Ex 16 0 0 0 0 .00 .00
Public Service Ex 17 12,773 1,008,620 17,773 1,008,620 48,375.00 .00
Student Aid Ex 19 0 0 0 0 14,642.04 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 1,224,626 0 1,224,626 0 883,822.66 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 16,088,870 1,751,230 16,319,330 1,754,030 14,317,492.54 .00
TOTAL Revenues 16,088,870 1,751,230 16,319,330 1,754,030 14,317,492.54 .00
Beginning Balance Instruction and General 4,344,561 0 6,197,831 0 6,197,830.94 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 38,142 0 64,424 0 64,423.95 .00
Public Service Ex 17 306,979 0 318,445 0 318,444.51 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 11,630 0 3,640 0 3,640.21 .00
Student Aid Ex 19 185,543 0 276,587 0 276,587.23 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 201,945 0 169,929 0 169,928.90 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 5,088,800 0 7,030,856 0 7,030,855.74 .00
TOTAL Beginning Balance 5,088,800 0 7,030,856 0 7,030,855.74 .00
Total Available Instruction and General 19,116,912 742,610 21,195,642 742,610 19,494,096.78 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 117,262 0 143,544 2,800 138,810.95 .00
Research Ex 16 0 0 0 0 .00 .00
Public Service Ex 17 319,752 1,008,620 336,218 1,008,620 366,819.51 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 11,630 0 3,640 0 3,640.21 .00
Student Aid Ex 19 185,543 0 276,587 0 291,229.27 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 1,426,571 0 1,394,555 0 1,053,751.56 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 21,177,670 1,751,230 23,350,186 1,754,030 21,348,348.28 .00
TOTAL Total Available 21,177,670 1,751,230 23,350,186 1,754,030 21,348,348.28 .00

Run on: 06/17/2019 



Exhibit 1 - UNM GALLUP Campus 
Summary of Current and Plant Funds

Original Revised 

Budget 2019 Budget 2019 Actuals 2019

PERIOD 11 PERIOD 11 PERIOD 11

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
Expenditures Instruction and General 14,149,016 742,610 14,362,115 742,610 11,976,900.52 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 79,120 0 79,120 2,800 24,279.71 .00
Research Ex 16 0 0 0 0 .00 .00
Public Service Ex 17 12,773 1,008,620 17,773 1,008,620 40,435.19 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 0 0 0 0 6,261.96 .00
Student Aid Ex 19 100,000 0 100,000 0 160,748.00 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 1,184,626 0 1,184,626 0 967,621.43 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 15,525,535 1,751,230 15,743,634 1,754,030 13,176,246.81 .00
TOTAL Expenditures 15,525,535 1,751,230 15,743,634 1,754,030 13,176,246.81 .00
Transfers Instruction and General (623,335) 0 (1,270,696) 0 (1,270,696.34) .00

Student Aid Ex 19 100,000 0 100,000 0 101,924.59 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 (40,000) 0 (40,000) 0 (40,000.00) .00

Subtotal Current Funds (563,335) 0 (1,210,696) 0 (1,208,771.75) .00
TOTAL Transfers (563,335) 0 (1,210,696) 0 (1,208,771.75) .00
Ending Balance Instruction and General 4,344,561 0 5,562,831 0 6,246,499.92 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 38,142 0 64,424 0 114,531.24 .00
Research Ex 16 0 0 0 0 .00 .00
Public Service Ex 17 306,979 0 318,445 0 326,384.32 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 11,630 0 3,640 0 (2,621.75) .00
Student Aid Ex 19 185,543 0 276,587 0 232,405.86 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 201,945 0 169,929 0 46,130.13 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 5,088,800 0 6,395,856 0 6,963,329.72 .00
TOTAL Ending Balance 5,088,800 0 6,395,856 0 6,963,329.72 .00
Total Expenditures, Transfers and 21,177,670 1,751,230 23,350,186 1,754,030 21,348,348.28 .00
Balances

Run on: 06/17/2019 



Gallup Branch

Administered by the Director's Office

Endowment Name Purpose
UNMF 

Account
Principal 

Index
Spending 

Index

Fair Market 
Value 

7/1/2018
Additions 

(Withdrawals)

Net 
Investment 

Earnings 
(Loss)

Spending 
Distribution

Fair Market 
Value 

3/31/2019

Allen and Leone Rollie Scholarship Fund Scholarship 607370 751010 162023 142,478.35 0.00 347.97 (3,758.85) 139,067.47

Basilio DiGregorio Memorial Endowment for Entrepreneurship Scholarship 605290 751011 751012 117,434.71 0.00 286.79 (3,098.16) 114,623.34

Charles Vidal Endowed Scholarship Scholarship 605840 751004 162015 42,635.13 0.00 104.14 (1,124.79) 41,614.48

Cibola Medical Foundation Nursing Scholarship Scholarship 610478 171015 171016 0.00 100,000.00 497.49 0.00 100,497.49

Desbah Largo Scholarship at the Gallup Branch Scholarship 601510 751001 162028 28,068.15 0.00 68.54 (740.49) 27,396.20

Fred R. Tamony Endowment Scholarship 607980 751013 751014 119,467.53 0.00 291.75 (3,151.80) 116,607.48

Gallup Branch Nursing Scholarship Scholarship 630960 751005 162030 5,463.00 0.00 13.35 (144.12) 5,332.23

Mary Ann Zollinger Fund Scholarship 630950 751000 162029 33,081.07 0.00 80.78 (872.76) 32,289.09

Myrtle Loughridge Memorial Scholarship Scholarship 600170 751006 162027 40,954.49 0.00 100.02 (1,080.45) 39,974.06

United Indian Traders Association Fund Scholarship 604440 751007 162014 53,641.78 0.00 131.00 (1,415.19) 52,357.59

UNM Gallup Entrepreneurial Professsorship - Match Faculty Support 632320 152003 152004 34,406.92 0.00 84.02 (907.71) 33,583.23

UNM-Gallup Entrepreneurial Professorship Faculty Support 609590 152002 152004 10,322.15 0.00 25.20 (272.31) 10,075.04

Administered by the Director's Office Total : 627,953.28 100,000.00 2,031.05 (16,566.63) 713,417.70

Gallup Branch Total : 627,953.28 100,000.00 2,031.05 (16,566.63) 713,417.70

**Your endowment is shared with other schools/colleges or programs.

If you need additional information, please e-mail Kenny Stansbury at kenny.stansbury@unmfund.org. Page 1Wednesday, June 05, 2019

CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENT FUND

UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO FOUNDATION

ENDOWMENT PROGRAM -  3/31/2019

ENDOWMENT ACTIVITY REPORT



UNM Foundation 
Performance by Investment Allocation Chart 

 
 
The endowment activity report summarizes all of the endowment gifts, investment earnings, fees, and spending 
distributions for the Gallup Branch from July 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019. 

Equity markets rallied the quarter ended March 31, with domestic equities up 14.1% for the quarter. UNM’s combined 
endowment return for the quarter was 6.4%. The fiscal year investment return through March was 1.8% and the 
endowment ended with a market value of $450.3 million. Long-term investment returns have also been strong, with 10-
year investment growth of 8.6%.  

The chart below shows performance by investment allocation, with benchmark performance information. The 
performance percentages in the chart below are stated before deducting the development funding allocation (DFA) fee, 
which remained at 1.85% for FY19.  

  Performance % 
  Fiscal 1 1 3 5 10 
  YTD Quarter Year Year Year Year 
UNM: Total Consolidated Investment Fund 1.8 6.4 2.6 7.6 5.0 8.6 
Benchmark: Total Fund 1.1 5.4 1.5 7.8 5.3 8.7 

UNM: Domestic Equity  4.7 14.1 8.8 13.5 10.4 15.0 
Benchmark: Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market Index 4.6 14 8.7 13.5 10.3 16.0 

UNM: International Equity -1.7 10.3 -4.1 8.0 2.3 9.8 
Benchmark: MSCI AC World ex U.S. Index (Net) -1.6 10.3 -4.2 8.1 2.6 8.9 

UNM: Fixed Income 3.2 2.9 1.4 3.0 1.9 3.7 
Benchmark: Fixed Income Composite Benchmark 3.4 2.8 2.3 3.0 2.3 3.6 

UNM: Cash/Money Market 1.5 0.6 1.9 1.1 0.6 0.3 
Benchmark: FTSE 3 Month T-Bill 1.7 0.6 2.1 1.2 0.7 0.4 

UNM: Liquid Real Assets -13.2 16.0 -2.9 4.0 -4.6 4.8 
Benchmark: S&P North American Natural Resources Sector -12.9 16.2 -2.4 4.6 -4.2 5.3 

UNM: Illiquid Real Assets 2.4 0.8 3.0 4.7 2.4 0.4 
Benchmark: Illiquid Real Assets Composite Benchmark 0.6 -5.0 1.7 8.9 10.3 8.3 

UNM: Total Marketable Assets -0.6 1.5 0.6 4.1 4.0 6.4 
Benchmark: HFRI Fund of Funds Composite Index -0.3 4.6 0.2 3.9 2.2 3.5 

UNM: Private Investments 6.6 -0.6 10.5 11.5 10.7 11.4 
Benchmark: Private Investments Custom Benchmark -3.7 -10.4 -3.7 10.3 10.9 12.8 

 
 
If you have questions about the report, please contact Kenny Stansbury (313-7633). 
 



Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Board Packet\2019\06.25.19 Board Packet\20190604 DRAFT By Laws 1-4 Amends 06.04.19 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS 
 
 

LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 

BYLAWS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE UNM GALLUP LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD ON: 
April 30, 2003 

 
First Amendment Adopted & Included October 20, 2010 

Second Amendment Adopted & Included October 22, 2014 
Third Amendment Adopted & Included February 21, 2017 

Fourth Amendment Adopted & Included April 4, 2017 
Changes made to the Bylaws per legislative action included June 25, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 

 
 

                                        ,Chairperson ,Secretary  
 
 
 
 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 2 

ORGANIZATION 
 
 100 NAME 
 

These are the Bylaws for the UNM Gallup Campus Local Advisory Board; hereafter referred to as the 
Board. 

 
 110 MEMBERS 
 

The Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus of the University of New Mexico shall be composed of 
the five members elected by registered voters as follows:  Positions One and Two by voters of the 
McKinley County School service area, Positions Three and Four by the voters of the Zuni Public 
School service area and one (1) Position Five, by voters of McKinley County and Zuni Public Schools 
service areas. Elections shall be governed by New Mexico State Statue, Chapter 22, NMSA 1978.  
 

The Second Amendment Organization 110 Members dated October 22, 2014 hereby replaces the By-Laws 
Organization 110 Members. 
 
The Fourth Amendment dated April 4, 2017 hereby replaces the Second Amendment Organization 110 Members. 
 
 120 ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 
The Board shall elect a chairperson, a vice chairperson, and a secretary from among its members. 
The election shall be held at the first regular Board meeting after the local election as determined 
by the Local Election Act.  

 
The term of office shall be for one year beginning immediately upon election and ending at the regular 
March Board meeting one year thereafter when successors have been duly elected.  

 
The Board may hold a special election to fill permanent officer vacancies. 
 

Local Election Act passed by the NM Legislature in 2018 effective July 1, 2018 established a statewide Local Election 
every November of odd numbered years for school districts including public schools and community colleges. 

 
 130 LOCAL BOARD DUTIES 
 

The duties of the Board shall be as stipulated by the Operating Agreement (Attachment A) between 
the Gallup Local Advisory Board and the University of New Mexico Board of Regents, and by the 
Branch Community College Act, as amended.  

 
 140 BOARD COMMITTEES 
 
 140.1 Standing Committees 
 

No individual member and no group comprising less than a quorum of the Board shall be designated 
as a standing committee to perform any of the Board’s functions.   

 
 140.2 Temporary Committees 
 

With the consent of the Board, the chairperson shall appoint temporary committees comprising less 
than the full membership for special purposes.  These committees shall be discharged on the 
completion of their assignment.  The chairperson shall be an ex-officio member of any such 
committee.  The chairperson shall have the option of appointing community members for special 
committees with a consent of the majority of the Board.  
 



Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Board Packet\2019\06.25.19 Board Packet\20190604 DRAFT By Laws 1-4 Amends 06.04.19 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 3 

 

 140.3 Chief Executive Office’s Committees 
 
The Chief Executive Officer may form committees to assist him/her in acquiring specific technical 
knowledge in determining community response to current issues. The members of these committees 
will be appointed by the Chief Executive Officer and selected from persons possessing the desirable 
expertise. 
 
The input from these committees may be presented to the Local Advisory Board and may through 
the Chief Executive Officer and with the concurrence of the proper University administration be 
presented to the Board of Regents of the University of New Mexico.  If a committee report is taken to 
the Board of Regents, it must first be presented to the Local Advisory Board. 

 
 150 CENTER FOR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (CCTE)  
 

The CCTE (formally the Area Vocational School) Executive Committee is made up of the following: 
UNM-G Chief Executive Officer, CCTE Principal, Chair of CCTE Steering Committee and 
Superintendents of: Gallup-McKinley County School District, Zuni Public School District, Rehoboth 
Christian School, and  Wingate High School (BIA).  This is the governing body of the CCTE and 
responsible for all policies therein.  A semester report, presented by the CCTE Steering Committee 
Chair, shall be made to the Board.  

 
 150.1 CCTE Steering Committee 

 
The CCTE Steering Committee is comprised of the counselors and administrators from the schools 
sending students to CCTE and the administrators from UNM-G. All are members by the invitation of 
the CCTE Executive Committee. The duty of the CCTE Steering Committee is to advise the CCTE 
Executive Committee as to policy changes, additions or deletions and act as a liaison between 
participating schools and the CCTE Administration. 

 
 160 & 160.1 Middle College High School Removed by First Amendment dated October 20, 2010. 
 
 
DUTIES OF MEMBERS AND AUXILIARY PERSONNEL 
 
 200 DUTIES OF THE CHAIRPERSON 

 
The chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall appoint all committees unless 
otherwise directed by the Board. 
 
The chairperson shall have the right to discuss questions and to vote thereon. 
 
The chairperson shall sign for the Board and generally represent the Board at all times when it is not 
convened.  In this function, in the absence of official Board action, the chairperson may not make 
commitments which bind the Board.  The chairperson shall notify the convened Board at the next 
regular meeting of any such representations. 

 
 210 DUTIES OF THE VICE CHAIR 

 
The vice chair shall preside in the absence of the chairperson. 

 
 220 DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY 

 
The Executive Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer of the UNM Gallup Campus shall act as the 
recording secretary. 
 
In the absence of the chairperson or secretary, another member of the Board shall act as signatory.  
The elected secretary shall be the official board secretary. 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 4 

 
 230 INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS 

 
Members of the Board have no individual authority, unless delegated by the Local Advisory Board. 

 
 
METHOD OF OPERATION 
 
 300 AMENDMENT AND REVIEW OF BYLAWS AND OPERATING AGREEMENT 
 
 300.1 Board Bylaws 

 
The Board’s Bylaws shall be reviewed annually at the summer retreat last scheduled meeting of the 
fiscal year. 
 
Bylaws or amendments to the existing Bylaws of the Board shall be proposed at one Board meeting 
and voted on at the next regular meeting.  An affirmative vote by at least a simple majority of those 
members of the Board in attendance shall be necessary to adopt a bylaw or amendment.  A proposed 
bylaw or amendment may be further amended at the next meeting and may then be voted on at the 
same meeting. 

 
 300.2 REVIEW OF OPERATING AGREEMENT 

 
The Operating Agreement with the University of New Mexico Board of Regents shall be reviewed by 
all parties as deemed necessary, but at least biennially. 

 
 310 BOARD MEETINGS 

 
The Chief Executive Officer’s office shall notify all Board members of Regular, Special, Information 
and Emergency meetings of the Board. 

 
 310.1 Open Meetings Act 

 
Section 10-15-1(B) of the Open Meetings Act (NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1 to 10-15-4) states that, 
except as may be otherwise provided in the constitution of the provisions of the Open Meetings Act, 
all meetings of the quorum of members of any board, council, commission or other policy-making 
body of any state or local public agency held for the purpose of formulating public policy, discussing 
public business or for the purpose of taking any action within the authority of or the delegated authority 
of such body, are declared to be public meetings open to the public at all times. 
 
Any meetings subject to the Open Meetings Act at which the discussion or adoption of any proposed 
resolution, rule, regulation or formal action occurs shall be held only after reasonable notice to the 
public. 
 
Section 10-15-1(D) of the Open Meetings Act requires the Board to determine annually what 
constitutes reasonable notice of its public meetings. 

 
 310.2 Regular Meetings 

 
The date and time of regular meetings will be established annually during the annual summer retreat 
or at the August meeting last scheduled meeting of the fiscal year, or whenever a majority of the 
Board vote to change the existing date and time.  Meetings will be held on an alternating basis at the 
UNM Gallup Executive Conference Room and the UNM Gallup South Campus Conference Room 
unless otherwise announced.  The agenda for the regular meetings will be set up by the Chief 
Executive Officer and the chairperson and will be e-mailed to the Board no later than one week prior 
to the regular meeting. 
 

The Second Amendment dated October 22, 2014 hereby replaces the deleted portion of the above paragraph. 
 



Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Board Packet\2019\06.25.19 Board Packet\20190604 DRAFT By Laws 1-4 Amends 06.04.19 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 5 

 

The Third Amendment dated February 21, 2017 hereby replaces the Second Amendment. 
 

Background and resource material pertinent to agenda items shall be distributed to Board members 
through the Chief Executive Officer’s office and e-mailed to the Board no later than one week prior to 
the regular meeting. 
 

Agenda items may be added for discussion only at the beginning of a regular meeting by a majority 
vote of the Board members present.  Agenda items that need to be voted on will be added to the 
next meeting agenda. 
 

Regular meetings shall generally follow the standard parliamentary procedure of Robert’s Rules of 
Order, except when otherwise provided by these bylaws. 
 

Executive sessions may be called by the chairman of the Board when necessary. 
 

Fifteen minutes shall be allowed in each regular meeting agenda for public input.  
 

 310.3 Notice Requirements of Regular Meetings 
 

Based upon the meeting dates determined during the last fiscal year meeting annual summer 
retreat or at the August Meeting, the Board shall review the Resolution Determining Reasonable 
Notice of Public Meetings of the UNM Gallup Local Board at the August or September last fiscal year 
meeting and determine whether any amendments are warranted. The Resolution shall be published 
posted to the UNMG Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ annually listing the dates, time and location of 
monthly meetings.  Monthly Meeting agendas shall be given to the news media in the College District 
for publication posted to the UNMG Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of 
the meeting.  A list of the agenda items shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the Chief Executive 
Officer’s office no later than seventy-two (72) hours before the regular meeting.  If a meeting date or 
location is changed from the annual published schedule, notice will be given to the media for legal ad 
publication posted to the UNMG Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting.   

 
NMSA 1978, 10-15-1(F).1 changed to 72 hour notice from 24 hour notice reflect a legislative amendment enacted in 
2013 that requires a public body to make the agenda of a regular or special meeting available to the public at least 72 
hours in advance of the meeting and to post meeting agendas on a public body’s website if one is maintained. 

 
Notices will be sent to all federally licensed broadcast stations and newspapers of general circulation 
in McKinley County that request in writing to receive copies of Board notices. 

 
 310.4 Special Meetings 
 

Special meetings may be called at any time by the chairperson or by written request of any three (3) 
members of the Board, or by the Chief Executive Officer.  An attempt shall be made to notify each 
Board member at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance. 
 
For any such meeting, notice of the date, time and place shall be given to the news media for 
publication posted to the UNMG Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of 
the meeting.  A list of the agenda items shall be posted in the Chief Executive Officer’s Office and 
posted to the UNMG Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/.  Special meetings shall be conducted 
according to the bylaws governing regular meetings, where applicable, and each meeting shall have 
an announced agenda. 

 
NMSA 1978, 10-15-1(F).1 changed to 72 hour notice from 24 hour notice reflect a legislative amendment enacted in 
2013 that requires a public body to make the agenda of a regular or special meeting available to the public at least 72 
hours in advance of the meeting and to post meeting agendas on a public body’s website if one is maintained. 

https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/


  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 6 

 
 310.5 Emergency Meetings 

 
Emergency meetings will be called only under circumstances which demand immediate action.  The 
governing Board shall avoid emergency meetings whenever possible.  Emergency meetings may be 
called by the Chairperson or by any three (3) board members upon twenty-four (24) hour notice, 
unless threat of personal injury or property damage requires less notice.  For any such meeting, an 
attempt shall be made to notify each Board member at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance. 
 
Notice of the date, time and place of the Emergency meeting shall be given to the news media for 
publication posted to the University of New Mexico Gallup Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance 
unless the threat of personal injury or loss or damage to property makes that impossible in which case 
notice will be given as soon as possible. The general subject matter of the meeting shall also be 
given. 
 
Emergency meetings need not have an agenda; however, the general subject matter of such 
meetings should be announced. 
 
Emergency meetings shall be conducted according to the bylaws governing regular meetings, were 
applicable. 

 

 310.6 Information Meetings 
 

Information meetings may be called by the Chief Executive Officer or any Board member. 
 
For such meetings, an attempt shall be made to notify each Board member at least seventy-two (72) 
hours in advance.  
 
No official action by the Board may be taken, and a quorum need not be present to conduct such a 
meeting.  

 

 310.7 Executive Sessions 
 

The governing Board may close a meeting to the public only if the subject matter of such discussion 
or action is exempted from the open meeting requirement under Section 10-15-1(E) of the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
If any meeting is closed during an open meeting, such closure shall be approved by the majority vote 
of the quorum of the governing board taken during the open meeting.  The authority for the closure 
and the subjects to be discussed shall be stated in the motion for closure and the vote on closure of 
each individual member shall be recorded in the minutes.  Only those subjects specified in the motion 
may be discussed in a closed meeting. 
 
If the decision to hold a closed session is made when the governing board is not in an open meeting, 
the closed meeting shall not be held until public notice, appropriate under the circumstances and 
stating the specific provision of law authorizing the closed meeting and the subject to be discussed is 
given to the members and the general public. 
 
Except as provided in Section 10-15-1(E), any action taken as a result of discussion in a closed 
meeting shall be made by vote of the governing board at an open public meeting. 

 

 310.8 Quorum 
 

Three (3) Board members, meeting at a designated time and place, shall constitute a quorum for the 
purpose of conducting business.  All action, motions, and decisions by the Board must be made by a 
majority vote of those present. 
 
The only business that can be conducted in the absence of a quorum is to take measures to obtain a 
quorum, fix a time of adjournment, take a recess, or hold an information meeting. 

 

https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/


Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Board Packet\2019\06.25.19 Board Packet\20190604 DRAFT By Laws 1-4 Amends 06.04.19 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 7 

 

 310.9 Procedures For Making Reports and Recommendations to the Board  
 

Reports, recommendations or requests for the Board may be submitted by any person.  Such reports, 
recommendation or requests must be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer’s office allowing 
sufficient time for copies to be submitted to individual Board members for study.  Such material should 
be submitted at least ten (10) days in advance of a regular meeting. 

 
 310.10 Adequate Information to Precede Action 

 
At any meeting, the Board shall defer action on any questions for which the Board determines 
insufficient information exists until such time as adequate information is furnished. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer may be requested to examine and evaluate information and recommend 
action before the Board makes a decision. 

 
 310.12 Minutes 
 

Minutes shall be kept of all Board meetings except meetings or portions of meetings closed pursuant 
to the New Mexico Open Meetings Act. 
 
Draft minutes shall be prepared within ten (10) working days after any meeting. 
 
Minutes shall not become official until approved by the Board and signed by the chairperson and 
elected secretary. 
 
Minutes shall record the dates, time and place of the meeting, the names of Board members in 
attendance and those absent; a statement of what proposals were considered; and a record of any 
decisions made by the Board and of how each member voted at each vote.  
 
All minutes, once official, shall be open to public inspection. 

 
 
 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 8 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS 
 

OF  
 

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 
 

The Bylaws of the Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup Campus (“Bylaws”) are hereby 
amended pursuant to Section 300 of the Bylaws as follows: 
 

1. Section 160 – Middle College High School (MCHS) is deleted in its entirety. 
 
2. Section 161.1 – MCHS Governing Council is deleted in its entirety. 

 
All other provisions of the Bylaws are hereby affirmed and remain unchanged. 
 
 
 
 

Officer’s Certificate 
 

We, the undersigned Chair and Secretary of the Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup 
Campus, certify the foregoing First Amendment to Bylaws was duly adopted by the Local Board at 
a regular meeting of the Local Board held on October 20, 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Virginia R. Chavez, Chair      June Shack, Secretary 
 
 



Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Board Packet\2019\06.25.19 Board Packet\20190604 DRAFT By Laws 1-4 Amends 06.04.19 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 9 

 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS 
 

OF  
  

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 
The Bylaws of the Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup Campus (“Bylaws”) are hereby 
amended pursuant to Section 300 of the Bylaws as follows: 
 
ORGANIZATION 
 

110 MEMBERS 
The Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus of the University of New Mexico shall be 
composed of the five members elected by registered voters as follows:  Positions One and 
Two by voters of the McKinley County School service area, Position Three by the voters of 
the Zuni Public School service area and Position Four and Five, by voters of McKinley 
County and Zuni Public Schools service areas. 
 

The Fourth Amendment dated April 4, 2017 Organization 110 Members hereby replaces the Second 
Amendment. 
 
METHOD OF OPERATION 
 

310.2 Regular Meetings 
Meetings will be held at the UNM Gallup Chief Executive Officer’s Conference Room and 
once each semester at the UNM Gallup South Campus Conference Room unless otherwise 
announced.   
 

The Third Amendment dated February 21, 2017 Method of Operation hereby cancels the Second 
Amendment to the Bylaws. 
 
All other provisions of the Bylaws are hereby affirmed and remain unchanged. 
 

Officer’s Certificate 
 

We, the undersigned Chair and Secretary of the Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup 
Campus, certify the foregoing Second Amendment to Bylaws was duly adopted by the Local 
Board at a regular meeting of the Local Board held on October 22, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Ralph Richards, Vice Chair    Virginia R. Chavez, Secretary 
 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 10 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS 
 

OF  
 

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 
The Bylaws of the Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup Campus (“Bylaws”) are hereby 
amended pursuant to Section 300 of the Bylaws as follows: 
 
 
METHOD OF OPERATION 
 

310.2 Regular Meetings 
Meetings will be held at the UNM Gallup Executive Conference Room unless otherwise 
announced. 

 
 
The Third Amendment Method of Operation hereby cancels the Second Amendment dated 
October 22, 2014 to the Bylaws. 
 
All other provisions of the Bylaws are hereby affirmed and remain unchanged. 
 
 
 
 

Officer’s Certificate 
 

We, the undersigned Chair and Secretary of the Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup 
Campus, certify the foregoing Third Amendment to Bylaws was duly adopted by the Local Board 
at a regular meeting of the Local Board held on February 21, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Ralph Richards, Chair    Priscilla Smith, Secretary 



Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Board Packet\2019\06.25.19 Board Packet\20190604 DRAFT By Laws 1-4 Amends 06.04.19 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 11 

 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS 
 

OF  
 

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 
The Bylaws of the Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup Campus (“Bylaws”) are hereby 
amended pursuant to Section 300 of the Bylaws as follows: 
 
ORGANIZATION 
 
 110 MEMBERS 
 

The Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup Campus of the University of New 
Mexico shall be composed of the five members elected by registered voters as 
follows:  Positions One, Two and Three by voters of the McKinley County School 
service area, and Positions Four and Five, by voters of McKinley County and Zuni 
Public Schools service areas. 

 
The Fourth Amendment Organization hereby cancels the Second Amendment dated October 22, 
2014 to the Bylaws. 
 
All other provisions of the Bylaws are hereby affirmed and remain unchanged. 
 
 
 
 

Officer’s Certificate 
 

We, the undersigned Chair and Secretary of the Local Advisory Board of the UNM Gallup 
Campus, certify the foregoing Fourth Amendment to Bylaws was duly adopted by the Local Board 
at a regular meeting of the Local Board held on April 4, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Ralph Richards, Chair     Priscilla Smith, Secretary 
 













2019
July

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

August
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

September
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

October
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

November
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

December
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

print-a-calendar.com

*Convocation AM Board Meeting PM

*

File Date

Election 

Day

cbutler1
Highlight



2020
January

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

February
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29

March
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

April
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

May
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

June
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

print-a-calendar.com

*

*Convocation AM Board Meeting PM *Legislation Advocacy Gallup McKinley Day or
UNM Day--Board Meeting

* * * * *

* * * * *

*Graduation Day -- Board Meeting

 
 

cbutler1
Highlight

cbutler1
Highlight

cbutler1
Highlight

cbutler1
Highlight

cbutler1
Highlight

cbutler1
Highlight

cbutler1
Highlight

cbutler1
Highlight

cbutler1
Highlight



 

Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Resolutions\Open Mtg Resolution\Resolution 2019-2020.doc 
  

2019-2020 Open Meetings Resolution     Page 1 

OPEN MEETINGS RESOLUTION  
OF THE 

UNM - GALLUP LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
 

WHEREAS, the UNM Gallup Local Board is a duly constituted policy making body in accordance with 
NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1 through 10-15-4, inclusive, as amended and supplemented; and  
 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1.C provides that certain public meetings of certain public 
policy making bodies shall be held only after reasonable notice to the public and that the public policy making 
body shall determine at least annually in a public meeting what notice for a public meeting is reasonable; and  
 

WHEREAS, the intention of the Resolution is to determine what notice of a public meeting shall be 
reasonable when applied to meetings of the Board as required by Section 10-15-1.C NMSA 1978; and  
 

 WHEREAS, notice of the meeting of the UNM Gallup Local Board on June 25, 2019 has been given at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the time of the public meeting at which this Resolution is to be adopted by 
posting in conspicuous place in the UNM Gallup Administration Office and on the UNM Gallup Local Advisory 
Board website https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the UNM Gallup Local Board that:  
 

1. Reasonable notice was given to the public of the Board Meeting held June 25, 2019. 
 
2. Reasonable notice to the public of any meetings of the Board or any meetings of a committee constituting 

a quorum of the Board shall consist of: 
 
A. As to regular meetings of the Board, this notice shall be posted annually listing the dates, time 

and location of meetings.  Meeting agendas shall be posted to the UNM Gallup Local Advisory 
Board website https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ at least seventy-two (72) 
hours in advance of the meeting.  A list of the agenda items shall also be posted in a conspicuous 
place in the UNM Gallup Administrative Office no later than seventy-two (72) hours before the 
regular meeting.   

 
B. Unless otherwise indicated, meetings of the UNM Gallup Local Board shall be held at 1:00 p.m. 

on the following dates and location of:  UNM Gallup Campus, Executive Conference Room 
GH1216, 705 Gurley Ave., Gallup, NM. 

 
August 12 
January 13 
February TBD 
May 15-16 

 
C. As to special meetings of the Board, which may be called at any time by the Chair of the Board or 

by written request of three members, therefore, notice of the date, time and place of special 
meetings of the Board shall be posted to the UNM Gallup Local Advisory website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ for publication at least seventy-two (72) 
hours in advance of the meeting.  A list of the agenda items shall also be given. 

 
D. As to the emergency meetings of the Board, notice of the date, time and place of emergency 

meetings shall be posted to the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ or emailed at least twenty-four (24) hours 
in advance of the meeting, unless threat of personal injury or property damage requires less 
notice. The general subject matter of the meeting shall also be given. 

https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/


 

Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Resolutions\Open Mtg Resolution\Resolution 2019-2020.doc 
  

2019-2020 Open Meetings Resolution     Page 2 

E. Additional notices: notice of special and emergency meetings shall also be posted in a 
conspicuous place in the UNM Gallup Administration Office at the same time notice is posted to 
the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/  . 

 
Notice of the information meetings shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the UNM Gallup 
Administration Office at the same time Board members are informed of such meetings.  Notices 
will be posted to the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board website 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ and sent to all federally licensed broadcast 
stations and newspapers of general circulation in McKinley County that request in writing to 
receive copies of Board meeting notices. 

 
The Board shall review these notice requirements annually at the last scheduled regular 
meeting of the fiscal year and determine whether any amendments are warranted. 

 
As used in the resolution, news media shall mean the Gallup Independent or any newspaper of 
general circulation throughout McKinley County, or any radio or television station which regularly 
broadcasts news throughout McKinley County.  Notice shall mean notice in person, by telephone 
or written notice to the general manager or other radio or television station employee generally 
responsible for accepting public service announcements or to the news clerk of any newspaper of 
general circulation throughout McKinley County. 

 
3. The foregoing determination shall be applicable to the Board Meeting held on this 25th day of June 2019, 

and all meetings held after June 25, 2019 until June 2020 
 
4. Pursuant to Section 10-15-1(C) of the Open Meetings Act, any member of the UNM Gallup Local Advisory 

Board may participate in a meeting of the Local Advisory Board of the Gallup Campus, by means of a 
conference telephone or other similar communications equipment when it is otherwise difficult or 
impossible for the members to attend the meeting in person, provided that each member participating by 
conference telephone can be identified when speaking, all participants are able to hear each other at the 
same time, and members of the public attending the meeting are able to hear any member of the Local 
Advisory Board of the Gallup Campus who speaks during the meeting. 

 
5. In addition to the information specified above, all notices shall include the following language: 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the meeting, please 
contact the Chief Executive Officer’s Office (505) 863-7501 at least one week prior to the meeting or as 
soon as possible.  Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various 
accessible formats.  Please contact the Chief Executive Officer’s Office if a summary or other type of 
accessible format is needed. 

 
6. The UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board may close a meeting to the public only if the subject matter of such 

discussion or action is exempted from the open meeting requirement under Section 10-15-1(H) of the 
Open Meetings Act. 

 
A. If any meeting is closed during an open meeting, such closure shall be approved by a majority 

vote of the quorum of the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board taken during the open meeting.  The 
authority for the closure and the subjects to be discussed shall be stated in the motion for closure 
and the vote on closure of each individual member shall be recorded in the minutes.  Only those 
subjects specified in the motion may be discussed in a closed meeting; and 
 

B. If the decision to hold a closed meeting is made when the UNM Local Advisory Board is not in 
open meeting, the closed meeting shall not be held until public notice, appropriate under the 
circumstances and stating the specific provision of law authorizing the closed meeting and the 
subjects to be discussed, is given to the members and to the general public; and 

https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/


 

Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Resolutions\Open Mtg Resolution\Resolution 2019-2020.doc 
  

2019-2020 Open Meetings Resolution     Page 3 

 
C. Except as provided in Section 10-15-1(E), any action taken as a result of discussion in a closed 

meeting shall be made by vote of the UNM Gallup Local Board in an open public meeting. 
 
PASSED by the UNM Gallup Local Board, this    25th    day of    June   , 2019. 

 
 
(Seal)       
 
 

 
 

 

Ralph Richards, Chair 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Priscilla Smith, Secretary  

 
 



Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Ethics\2019 Ethics.doc 

LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD CODE OF ETHICS 
 
The citizens in my community have elected me to represent them.  As a member of the UNMG Local Advisory Board, I 
will strive to improve higher education for all UNMG students and to that end, I will: 
 

1. Attend all scheduled board meetings insofar as possible and will come to each meeting prepared and ready to 
debate issues fully and openly; 
 

2. Recognize that I have no legal authority outside the board meetings and that all decisions of the board will be 
made at a public meeting; to conduct my relationships with the community college staff, the local citizenry, and 
all media of the community on the basis of this fact; remember that the board derives its authority from the 
community; and that it must always act as an advocate on behalf of the entire community; 
 

3. Work in harmony with my fellow members of the board to always promote cooperation in spite of differences of 
opinion that arise during vigorous debates of points of issue and preserve the integrity of the board; 
 

4. The board Chair will speak on behalf of the board or in his/her absence, the Vice Chair, except at those times 
when the board, by official action, authorizes me to do so, and respect the confidentiality of information that is 
privileged under applicable law; 
 

5. Upgrade my performance as a board member by informing myself about current educational issues by 
individual study and by engaging in a regular and ongoing process of training and continuous improvement; 
 

6. Support the employment of those persons best qualified to serve as faculty and staff to make every effort to 
ascertain that all employees are properly remunerated for their services and that they are dealt with fairly in the 
performance of their duties; 
 

7. Avoid temptation and outside pressure to use my position as a community college board member to benefit 
myself or any other individual or agency apart from the total interest of the community college district; 
 

8. Accept that my primary function is to oversee the policies by which UNMG is administered; and that the actual 
administration of the education programs is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and her/his staff while 
creating and maintaining a spirit of true cooperation and a mutually supportive relationship with the Chief 
Executive Officer; 
 

9. Welcome and encourage active participation and cooperation by citizens, organizations, tribal entities and the 
media with respect to current college operations and proposed future developments, for a better understanding 
of their needs and improvement of relations with the public that I serve; 
 

10. It is as important for the board to understand and evaluate the educational program of the community college 
as it is to plan for the business of college operation; 

 
11. Strive toward ideal conditions for the most effective community college board service to my community, in a 

spirit of teamwork and devotion to public education as the greatest instrument for the preservation and the 
perpetuation of our representative democracy. 

 
PASSED by the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board, this 25th day of June, 2019. 

 
 

 

Ralph Richards, Chair 
 

Priscilla Smith, Secretary  
 

Teri Garcia, Member 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Olin Kieyoomia, Vice Chair 
 

Gerald O’Hara, Member 
 
 
 
    (Seal)  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



Z:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Election\2019 Board Election\20190530 Notice To Mccobur Of Elec Re UNMG Positions Signed.Doc

 
705 Gurley Avenue ~Gallup, New Mexico 87301 *  505-863-7501  FAX 505-863-7532 ~ EMAIL:cbutler1@unm.edu 

 

 
 
 
 
May 30, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
Marlene Custer, Manager 
McKinley County Bureau of Elections 
207 West Hill Ave. 
Gallup, NM 87301 
 
Re:  UNM Gallup board positions to be filled at the November 5, 2019 election 
 
Dear Marlene: 
 
Notice is hereby given that the following positions are to be filled at the November 5, 2019 regular 
local election. 
 

• Position 3 - election by voters of the McKinley County School service area (four-year term) 
• Position 4 - election by voters of McKinley County and Zuni Public Schools service area (four-

year term) 
• Position 5 - election by voters of McKinley County and Zuni Public Schools service area (four-

year term) 
 
I request that you inform the Secretary of State of the above listed positions to be filled. 
 
If you have questions, or need any other information please let me know. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Christy Butler 
Executive Assistant 
Recording Secretary,  
UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board 
 



You and Your Family  
 

Are invited to 
 

A Local Advisory Board Garden Party Reception 
 

Celebrating Dr. Jeronimo Dominguez’s 
 

Contributions to UNM Gallup 
 

On June 25, 2019 
 

At Four O’clock in the Afternoon 
 

At the CEO’s Residence 
 

1900 Mariyana Street 
 

Heavy Hors d’oeuveres will be served 
 
 
 
 
 

RSVP to confirm your attendance to 
Christy Butler (505) 863-7501 or 
cbutler1@unm.edu  

mailto:cbutler1@unm.edu

	June 25, 2019 Cover Sheet
	I. Agenda
	III. May 21, 2019 Minutes
	VI. a. UNMG Summary of Current & Plant Funds Period 11
	VI. b. UNMF Endowment Activity Report 3/31/19
	VI. c. UNMF Performance by Investment Allocation Chart
	VII. a. UNMG Local Advisory Board Bylaws
	VII. b. 2018-2020 Operating Agreement
	VII. c. 2019-2020 Tentative Board Calendar
	VII. d. 2019-2020 Open Meetings Resolution
	VII. e. Code of Ethics
	VII. f. Correspondence to McKinley County Bureau of Elections
	XI. Invitation to Dr. Jerry Dominguez Garden Party Reception



